
1 

MINUTES 
September 21, 2015 

5:00 P.M. 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: 
S. Marmarou, D. Sterner, C Daubert, J. Slifko, J. Waltman 
  
OTHERS PRESENT: 
L. Kelleher, S. Katzenmoyer, T. Butler, D. Cituk, C. Snyder, C. Turtell, L. Heimback, E. 
Santamoor, V. Leung, D. Pottiger, C. Zale 
 
The Committee of the Whole meeting was called to order at 5:02 pm by Mr. Waltman.   
 
I. 2014 External Audit 
Mr. Cituk introduced the representatives from Herbein and from PFM. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that the City will receive a clean opinion. 
 
Ms. Reed and Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz arrived at this time. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that EIT tax collection continues to be strong.  He stated that this has been 
the trend for the last three years.  He stated that there is also a positive trend in the collection 
of real estate taxes.  He stated that working with the County has been successful. 
 
Mr. Waltman questioned the EIT tax trend.  Mr. Turtell stated that it is partly due to the new 
collection regulations requiring one tax collector and requiring the employer to withhold the 
municipal tax rate and partly due to people getting back to work after the recession. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that EMS was under budget by $500,000.  Mr. Cituk explained that this loss 
was created by the wheelchair transport service which was discontinued in June 2015.   
 
Ms. Snyder stated that the 4th ambulance is not generating revenue as expected.  Mr. 
Marmarou expressed the belief that the ambulance service never generated revenue.  Mr. 
Cituk stated that it did in year one. 

 

COMMITTEE of the WHOLE 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 



2 

 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz requested that discussion stay on topic. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that the addition of the Penn Street property expenses were unexpected in 
2014. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that the City ended 2014 with a surplus of $2,986,149 and a fund balance of 
$23,161,000.  He stated that $2.5 million of the fund balance was used to balance the 2015 
budget.  He noted the need for the City to adopt a fund balance policy. 
 
Ms. Heimback noted the need for the City to refer to the Act 47 Plan for guidance. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz noted the need for the City to ensure that there is no misuse of the 
fund balance and that policies are followed. 
 
Mr. Johnson arrived at this time. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that the water fund finished 2014 with a $2 million deficit, the sewer fund 
with an $11.5 million surplus and the recycling/trash fund with just over $1 million.  He stated 
that there is no deficit in the recycling/trash fund due to the changes in the MOU with the 
Water Authority for collection. 
 
Mr. Waltman noted his concern with the deficit in the water fund.  He noted the need to 
address this with the Water Authority. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that a new GASB regulation went into effect in 2014 and that the City’s 
pension obligations must now appear as a liability on financial statements.  He stated that this 
is explained in Note 10 of the draft audit.  He stated that the goal is to increase transparency. 
 
Mr. Slifko questioned the effect of changing the pension projections.  Mr. Turtell stated that 
this is also addressed in the draft audit on page 71. 
 
Mr. Waltman stated that pension is a large and important topic.  He stated that it will be 
discussed at length at a future meeting. 
 
Mr. Turtell called Council’s attention to the repeat findings.  He stated that those listed in 
yellow have been repeat findings since 2007.   
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz thanked Herbein for providing this list.  She stated that it is painful 
for her to review and that systemic changes are needed. 
 



3 

Mr. Turtell stated that Mr. Pottiger and Mr. Zale have worked to complete standard operating 
procedures to address these items.  He stated that it will help with future audits and that 
several items have been addressed in 2015 and will come off the list. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that the monitoring of State grants is a new finding.  He noted the need to 
closely monitor and draw down the H20 and PennVest funds.  He noted the need for 
procedures and that not addressing the funds consistently could lead to cash flow problems. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz questioned if the City would be impacted by the State budget 
impasse.  Mr. Turtell and Mr. Cituk stated that it should not be affected. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that he is concerned about the timeliness of bank reconciliations.  Mr. 
Pottiger explained that he was caught up with the reconciliations until Mr. Bembenick left the 
City.  He stated that this caused delays but that a temp was hired to complete the 
reconciliations. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that the reconciliations are much better than they were in the past.  Mr. 
Waltman suggested automating the process. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that there was also an issue with the receipt of payments for delinquent 
taxes when Portnoff was no longer the City’s agent.  He stated that this has been rectified. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that several findings have been removed.  He stated that there is increased 
coordination and communication between accounting and community development on 
expenses and draw downs.  He stated that this is the first year that Herbein has completed the 
audit that there are no findings in Community Development.  He thanked Ms. Kelleher for her 
work to remove the time card finding. 
 
Mr. Turtell stated that the charts were provided for quick reference on revenue sources and 
expenses. 
 
Mr. Turtell reviewed the management letter.  He stated that the turnover issue needs to be 
addressed.  He stated that there have also been several leaves of absences which affected 
Administrative Services. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz noted her concern with the upcoming transition.  She stated that 
recommendations are needed along with standard operating procedures. 
 
Mr. Waltman suggested that the City’s intranet be used as a resource to house the City’s 
standard operating procedures.  He also noted the need to utilize the internal auditor. 
 



4 

Mr. Turtell stated that an accounting manual is needed along with better cross training.  He 
agreed that the internal auditor needed to become more involved in a variety of areas covered 
in the management letter.   
 
Mr. Waltman suggested that several key employees be trained to perform audits.   
 
Mr. Heimback stated that Herbein would be providing several training sessions and that City 
representatives would be welcome to attend. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz noted the importance of the oversight of sole source procurement. 
 
Mr. Pottiger stated that there were 12 findings in 2013.  He stated that five have been removed 
in 2014 and that two more have been addressed in 2015.  He stated that two others seem 
simple to correct and that he hopes to address the rest of the findings by the end of 2015.  He 
stated that much progress has been made. 
 
Mr. Waltman thanked all for their work.  He stated that the legal bills continue to be an issue 
but that this would be addressed at the Finance Committee later this evening.  He noted the 
need for controls. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz stated that the Federal government has developed sole source 
policies.  She suggested that the City review them. 
 
Mr. Coleman arrived at this time. 
 
Mr. Waltman stated that misappropriations can be pursued by the City. 
 
Mr. Pottiger thanked Herbein for their work. 
 
The Herbein and PFM representatives left the meeting at this time. 
 
II. Executive Session 
Mr. Waltman announced that Council would be entering executive session to discuss potential 
litigation and to deliberate on several legal decisions. 
 
Council entered executive session at 5:51 pm and exited at 6:41 pm. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:41 pm. 
 

Respectfully Submitted by 
Linda A. Kelleher, CMC, City Clerk 

 
 


